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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of
Mahindra World City Developers Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2020, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is invited to Note 28 to the
Ind AS financial statements on the disputed income tax cases under
litigation. The management, taking into consideration the merits of the
case and supporting judgements and the Special Leave petition filed
with the Hon’ble Supreme Court which has been accepted, is of the
view that no provision is presently considered necessary in respect of
the unfavourable order passed by the Hon’ble High Court of Madras,
dismissing the appeal filed by the Company on certain Income Tax
Disputes relating to earlier years. Our opinion is not qualified in respect
of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s
Report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible
for the other information. The other information at the date of this
Auditor’'s Report comprises the information included in the Director’s
Report including annexures, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143
(10) of the Act will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind
AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
(“CARO 2016”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, on the basis
of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure-B”, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we
report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive income, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the Directors as on 31 March 2020 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A’. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial
statements. (Refer Note 28 to the Ind AS financial
statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
which has any material foreseeable losses. The
Company did not have any derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

P. Shankar Raman

Partner

Membership No. 204764
UDIN : 20204764AAAAAZ9231

Place: Chennai
Date: 22 April 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Mahindra World City Developers Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Ind
AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over

Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based
on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

P. Shankar Raman

Partner

Membership No. 204764
UDIN : 20204764AAAAAZ9231

Place: Chennai
Date: 22 April 2020
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Vi.

In respect of its fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE)):

a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of PPE.

b) Most of the PPE were physically verified during
the year by the Management in accordance with
a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all PPE
at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

c) With respect to immovable properties of land that
are freehold, according to the information and
explanations given to us and the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the original
title deeds/Land Delivery Receipts (LDR’s) issued by
Government provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds of such immovable properties are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, having regard to the nature of
inventory, the physical verification by way of verification of
title deeds are done at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of Act and hence reporting
under clause (iii) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of making investments. The Company
has not granted any loans nor provided any guarantees
and securities.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during
the year. There were no unclaimed deposits outstanding
at any time during the year.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by
the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act.
We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the
Central Government under subsection (1) of Section 148
of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the

cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to
us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax (“GST”), Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Income Tax, GST, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March
2020 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

c) The details of dues of Income Tax and Service Tax
which has not been deposited as on 31st March 2020
on account of disputes are given below:

Period to

Forum where which the Amount
Name of Nature of dispute is Amount| Unpaid (Rs.
Statue Dues pending relates in Lakhs)
Income Tax Income Tax  [Honourable AY 2011-12 171.45
Act, 1961 Supreme court

of India
Finance Act, |Service Tax |CESTAT 2008-2017 365.82
1994

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and

Xi.

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions and banks. The Company has not taken any
loans or borrowings from government and has not issued
any debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the term loan has been applied
by the Company during the year for the purpose for
which they are obtained other than temporary deployment
pending application. The Company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments).

During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of such cases by the Management.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not paid/provided managerial remuneration
covered under the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act and accordingly reporting under
clause (xi) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.



Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting
under clause (xii) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause
(xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, during the year the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors

XVi.

Place: Chennai
Date: 22 April 2020
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or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of
Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section
45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

P. Shankar Raman

Partner

Membership No. 204764
UDIN : 20204764AAAAAZ9231
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2020

Particulars
ASSETS

Non-current assets

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Note As at As at
No. 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

(@) Property, Plant and EqQUIpment ... 3 3,227.75 3,599.36
(b) Capital Work in Progress 3 27.00 -
(C)  INtANGIDIE ASSELS ....ccueeiiiiieiei et 3 - -
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(@) Investments in ASSOCIALE ........cccvviiiiiiiiicie e 4 1,300.00 1,300.00
(b) Investments in Joint Venture ... 4 10,200.00 10,200.00
(i) Other Financial Assets..............c...... 5 4.53 4.03
(€) Other NON-CUITENt ASSEIS ...uiiiiiiie et naaa e 6 2,205.58 1,856.74
16,964.86 16,960.13
Current assets
(G [0 1YZ=T g1 (ol = TP OTPRTIRTN 7 27,599.37 27,008.35
(b) Financial assets
(1)  Trade RECEIVADIES .......ccceiiiieiiieie et 8 564.86 1,650.97
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 171.32 110.28
(iii) Other Financial Assets...........ccccecu.e. 5 34.24 84.23
(C) Other CUIreNt ASSEIS ..vviiiiiiiie et sbee e e 6 3,379.52 3,391.74
31,749.31 32,245.57
Total Assets 48,714.17 49,205.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) EQquity Share Capital........ccceeiuieiiieiiieiie e 10 2,000.00 2,000.00
(D) OthEr EQUILY ..o 11 12,057.44 13,160.31
Total EQUILY ... e 14,057.44 15,160.31
Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(1) BOITOWINGS .. .eiieiiiiieeiie ettt st et e e et e e s sab e e e s neeeeenneee s 12A 24,237.16 20,327.33
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 13 1.42 1.09
(b) Other Liabilities.........ccccoeerriiieiireneeene 14 1,399.18 1,408.67
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 1,763.65 2,218.73
o ) I = €0 /=] o] o - SRR 16 28.23 35.66
Total Non-current labilities.............ooouueeeiii i 27,429.64 23,991.48
Current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(1) BOITOWINGS .. eviieiiiiie ettt ettt e st e e s b e e snbnee s 12B 5,816.97 8,520.09
(i) Trade Payable
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises......... 17 75.58 48.23
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
SMAIl ENTEIPIISES. ...t 17 754.46 1,027.77
(i) Other Financial Liabilities ..........c.ccoviieriiieiieieee e 13 40.98 28.72
(b) Other Current Liabilities 14 507.47 422.40
(€) Provisions .......cccceevevveeeiineeans 16 31.63 6.70
Total Current Liabilities ......................c......... 7,227.09 10,053.91
Total Liabilities .............cooiiiiiii 34,656.73 34,045.39
Total Equity and Liabilities................coooii i 48,714.17 49,205.70
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For B.K. Khare & Co. Mahindra World City Developers Limited
Chartered Accountants
A K Nanda Sangeeta Prasad
Chairman Director
(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02791944)
Place: Chennai Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K A Muthukumaran
Date: 22" April 2020 Business Head (CEO) Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Income
I. Revenue from OpPerationS...........oceiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 18 4,219.23 13,306.68
Il OthEr INCOMIB ... 19 139.12 269.56
. Total income (I + 1) ..o 4,358.35 13,576.24
Expenses
(@) Cost of Projects
COSt OF PrOJECES ...ttt 20 571.23 5,317.92
Operation & Maintenance EXPENSES.........ccccerieiiiiiiiiiiiiesie e 21 1,743.55 1,663.06
(b) Employee Benefits EXPENSE ......ccciuiiiiieiiieiiiicniie sttt 22 411.27 322.29
(c) Depreciation/Amortisation EXPENSE........cccciriiiiiiiiniiieee e 3 382.87 383.35
() FINANCE COSES....eiiiitiiiiiiiiieiie sttt 23 1,848.23 2,125.63
(E) OFNEr EXPENSES ..ttt 24 702.81 1,031.05
IV, Total EXPENSES ........ooiiiiiiiiiiieet et 5,659.96 10,843.30
V. (Loss)/Profit before tax (1) = (IV).....cccoooiiiiiii e (1,301.61) 2,732.94
Tax expenses
(10T £=T o) A - D USSP UPRR 15 - 1,060.00
(D= (=14 =To [ - ¥ PSPPSR 15 (471.27) (240.51)
Income tax relating to earlier years(Net).........coccvveviiieiiii e 27.12 279.00
VI, Total taX @XPENSE..........cccviiiiieiiie e (444.15) 1,098.49
VII. (Loss)/ Profit for the year (V = VI) ......coooiiiiiiii e (857.46) 1,634.45
Other Comprehensive (Loss) / Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(@) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans...........cccccvviencncncee. (6.06) 2.19
(b) Income tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss... (1.76) 0.64
VIIl. Other Comprehensive (loss)/Income for the year ...............ccceeiiriinnnen. (4.30) 1.55
Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income for the year (VII + VIII) ..................... (861.76) 1,636.00
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10/- each) 27
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (RS.)......cccooeiieieriiiiiiiieseeeee e (4.29) 8.17
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For B.K. Khare & Co. Mahindra World City Developers Limited

Chartered Accountants
A K Nanda Sangeeta Prasad
Chairman Director
(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02791944)

Place: Cflenna_i Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K

Date: 22" April 2020 Business Head (CEO) Chief Financial Officer

A Muthukumaran
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss)/Profit before tax for the year.........cccoveiieiiniiiii e

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortisation eXPeNSE..........cocueiiiiiiiieiiiiee e
Profit on sale of plant, property and equipment...........cccccovviiiiii e
FINANCE COSES.....eitiiiiiiice e e
INEEreSt INCOMIE.......oiiiii e

DivIdeNd INCOME ..o nnnnnnnnan

Operating Profit before working capital changes ..................c.cccooiiiiiinis

Working Capital changes:

Decrease iN INVENTOMIES. ......oueiie e
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables............cccoieeiiiiiniiiiieese e
Decrease in FINanCial ASSEIS.........uoi i
(Increase)/Decrease in Other ASSEtS........coociiiiiiiiieiiie e
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables. ...t
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities .........cccceoiiiiiiirieniciieccceee e
Increase in Other Liabilities. ..o

INCrease iN PrOVISIONS .........ooviiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeetee e nnnan

Cash generated from OPEerationS..........coocuiiiiiieiieiie e
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) .........cocciiiiiiiiiii

Net cash generated by operating activities (A)..........cccccoiiiiiiiiiee

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (PPE)........ccccoviiiiiiiiinniic e
Proceeds from sale Of PPE..........oo e

Increase in Bank Deposits not considered Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interest received

Related Parties .........ooouiiiiiieee s
(O 1 g1 £
DivIAENd RECEIVE. ........ooeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeaeas

Net cash used in investing activities (B)............ccccoviiiiiniiinie

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the
year ended

For the

year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

............. (1,307.67) 2,732.94
............. 382.87 383.35

- (8.26)
............. 1,848.23 2,125.63
............. (1.16) (1.08)

- (149.50)
............. 922.27 5,083.13
............. 532.66 5,266.32
............. 1,086.11 (1,221.94)
............. 49.99 8.82
............. (24.93) 55.67
............. (245.99) 146.22
............. 12.59 (111.74)
............. 75.58 246.50
............. 17.50 19.25
............. 2,425.78 9,492.23
............. (320.85) (495.07)
.............. 2,104.93 8,997.16
.............. (38.25) (237.20)

- 8.26
.............. (0.50) (4.03)
.............. 1.16 1.03

- 149.50
.............. (37.59) (82.44)




MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020 (Cont'd)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

For the

year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Cash flows from Financing activities

For the
year ended

Proceeds of short term borrowings from related party ..........ccoccevieeiiiiniiiie e 2,000.00 200.00
Repayment of short term borrowings from related party..........ccccooeiiiiiiiiiie - (200.00)
DiIVIAENA PAIA ...ttt (200.00) -
Dividend distribution tax paid ... (41.11) -
Proceeds from 10ng term DOITOWINGS .......ooiiiiiiieiiicee s 5,400.00 27,100.00
Repayment of ong term DOrTOWINGS. ........oooiiiiiieieeee e s (1,532.37) (32,663.28)
INEEIEST PAIA ... ittt n (2,929.70) (3,300.70)
Net cash generated from/(used in) Financing activities (C) ...........ccccccooiniiniincninnn, 2,696.82 (8,863.98)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) ..o 4,764.16 50.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ...........c.ccoooiiiiiicnce (8,409.81) (8,460.55)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 9)...............ccocoeviniinnnnn (3,645.65) (8,409.81)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the financial statements.
Change in Liabilities arising from financing activities
As at Other As at
Particulars 01st April, 2019 Cash Flow Adjustments 31st March, 2020
Non Current Borrowings (Refer Note 12A) 20,327.33 3,867.63 42.20 24,237.16
Current Borrowings (Refer Note 12B) - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00
Total 20,327.33 7,525.43 42.20 27,894.96

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in ‘Indian Accounting Standard (Ind

AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows’.

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For B.K. Khare & Co. Mahindra World City Developers Limited

Chartered Accountants
A K Nanda Sangeeta Prasad
Chairman Director
(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02791944)

Place: Cflenna_i Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K

Date: 22" April 2020 Business Head (CEO) Chief Financial Officer

A Muthukumaran
Company Secretary



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED

CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

As at 1 April 2018......ccocveernens

Changes in share capital ..........

As At 31 March 2019...............
Changes in share capital ..........

As At 31 March 2020...............

B. Other Equity

Particulars

As at 1 April 2018.......cccccuene

Profit for the year........ccccceenne.

Other Comprehensive Income*

As at 31 March 2019 ...............

Loss for the year...........cccoeenee

Other Comprehensive (Loss)* ..

Dividend Payout including DDT

As at 31 March 2020 ...............

No. of Shares Amount in
Lakhs

issued, subscribed and fully paid
........................................................................................... 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
........................................................................................... 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
........................................................................................... 2,00,00,000 2,000.00

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Other Equity

General Capital Retained Total
Reserve Redemption earnings
(Note 11) Reserve (Note 11)
(Note 11)
.................................. 345.00 6,500.00 4,679.31 11,524.31
.................................. - - 1,634.45 1,634.45
.................................. - - 1.55 1.55
.................................. 345.00 6,500.00 6,315.31 13,160.31
.................................. - - (857.46) (857.46)
.................................. - - (4.30) (4.30)
.................................. - - (241.11) (241.11)
.................................. 345.00 6,500.00 5,212.44 12,057.44

* Remeasurement gains/(losses) net of taxes on defined benefit plans during the year is recognised as part of retained earnings

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report of even date
For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Chennai
Date: 22" April 2020
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For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Mahindra World City Developers Limited

A K Nanda Sangeeta Prasad

Chairman Director

(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02791944)

Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K A Muthukumaran
Business Head (CEO) Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



General Information

Mahindra World City Developers Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated
on February 19, 1997. The Company is in the business of land development
for industrial, commercial and residential use. The Company acquires
land and incurs expenditure on its development and related infrastructure
facilities for lease/sale. The Company also maintains the Industrial Park
for which it collects operation and maintenance charges from the lessees.
The Company has developed and operates an integrated business city
“Mahindra World City” at Chengalpattu taluk near Chennai.

Promoted in a Public Private Partnership by the Mahindra Group and
Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited (A Government of
Tamil Nadu Undertaking), Mahindra World City surpasses the conventional
definition of a business space - it is a business eco-system, carefully linked
and integrated to function with efficiency. Mahindra World City, Chennai is
India’s first integrated City and Corporate India’s first operational SEZ.

Etching its name on India’s business map, Mahindra World City Chennai,
has attracted corporate giants such as BMW, B.Braun, Capgemini, Holiday
Inn Express, Infosys, BASF, Lincoln Electric, Parker Hannifin, Renault-
Nissan, Tesa SE, Federal Mogul, Fujitec, NTN Corporation, Timken, TVS
Group of Companies and Wipro among others.

The Registered office of the company is located at Ground Floor, Mahindra
Towers, 17/18, Patulous Road, Chennai, Tamil Nadu -600 002.

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The aforesaid financial statements have been approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue in their
meeting held on April 22, 2020.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

2.2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.2.2 Exemption from preparation of consolidated financial statements

The Company has investments in an Associate and a Joint
venture. The Holding company, Mahindra Lifespaces Developers
Limited, having its registered office at 5th floor, Mahindra Towers,
Worli, Mumbai 400 018 are presenting the consolidated financial
statements. The Company has therefore availed the exemption
under paragraph 4(a) of Ind AS 110 having satisfied the conditions
for exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements as
per Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules, 2016 and thereby
does not present consolidated financial statements.

Consequently, the accounting policies mentioned herein relate to
the standalone financial statements of the Company.

2.2.3 Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into

2.24

2.3

2.3.1

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value
in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data(unobservable inputs)

Current versus non-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for

processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of activity carried out by the company and the
period between the procurement and realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
1 year for the purpose of Current — Non Current classification of
assets & liabilities.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet

based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

—  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed
in normal operating cycle

—  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

—  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

— Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being

exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

— It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
— ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

— Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period, or

— There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Borrowings are classified as current if they are due to be settled
within 12 months after the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

Land Lease Premium

Land lease premium is recognized as income upon creation of
leasehold rights in favour of the lessee or upon an agreement to
create leasehold rights with handing over of possession.

11
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2.3.2

2.3.3

2.3.4

2.3.5

2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

Sale of land

Revenue from Sale of land and other rights is generally a single
performance obligation and the Company has determined that this
is satisfied at the point in time when control transfers as per the
terms of the contract entered into with the buyers, which generally
are with the firmity of the sale contracts/agreements.

Project Management fee

Project Management Fees receivable on fixed period contracts is
accounted over the tenure of the contract/ agreement. Where the fee
is linked to the input costs, revenue is recognised as a proportion
of the work completed based on progress claims submitted. Where
the management fee is linked to the revenue generation from the
project, revenue is recognised on the percentage of completion
basis. .

Income from Operation & Maintenance (O&M)

Income from operation & maintenance charges and water charges
are recognized on an accrual basis as per terms of the agreement
with the lessees.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments from Joint ventures and
Associates is recognised when the unit holder’s right to receive
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as a Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where
the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected
inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the
year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a Lessee

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where
the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the
year in which such benefits accrue.

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor
are recognised as operating leases. The assets given by the
Company on operating leases are capitalised in the books as
fixed assets. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

25

2.5.1

2.5.2

2.5.3

2.6

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws,
which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment
to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it
will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Furniture & Fixtures and Office equipment’s are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Impairment of tangible and intangible asset other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
cost to sell, of the asset or cash generating unit, as the case may
be, is estimated and the impairment loss (if any) is recognised and
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where

2.10

2.11

2.12
2.12.1

2.12.2

2.12.3

2.12.4

2.13

considered necessary. Work in progress includes cost of land and
all expenditure incurred in connection with, or attributable to the
project, and, being a long-term project, includes interest.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/
(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered
to exist where the Company has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

a. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and

b.  apresent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable
estimate is possible.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of

13



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

14

2.14

2.15

2.15.1

2.15.2

the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets/liabilities are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the date of settlement
or at the year-end as applicable, and gain/loss arising out of such
translation is adjusted to the profit and loss account.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for Financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) debt
instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains
and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes
in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’.
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

The Management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term
deposits, trade receivables, other current assets, trade payables,
book overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a

2.15.3

2.15.4

2.15.5

current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The fair-value of the financial-instruments factor the
uncertainties arising out of COVID-19, where applicable.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’). Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other
income” line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or
FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition,
debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt
instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has
not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’
line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when
the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right Offsetting Financial assets
and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising
impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables,
and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset,
and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit
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loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through
the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses
are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that
are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument
at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but
determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement
in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company
again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected
credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses
the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of
expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement
of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at
FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying
amount in the balance sheet.

In addition the Company has also considered credit reports and
other credit information for its customers to estimate the probability
of default in future and has taken into account estimates of possible
effect from the pandemic relating to COVID -19. The Company
believes that the carrying amount of allowance for expected credit
loss with respect to trade receivables, unbilled revenue and other
financial assets is adequate.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers

2.15.7

2.16

2.16.1

the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain
or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety
(e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a
transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss
on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate
at the end of each reporting period.

. For foreign currency, denominated financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

. Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity
instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency
rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes
in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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2.16.1.1

2.16.1.2

2.16.1.3

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued
by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest
rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting
policies set out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not
designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts
of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of
costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund,
employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated
absences, long service awards and post-employment medical
benefits.

The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered as
defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they
fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made
and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance
Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognized past service cost.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognized during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service. The cost of such compensated absences is accounted as
under:

a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when
employees render the services that increase their entitlement
of future compensated absences; and

b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when
the absences occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related service are recognized as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date.

Earnings per Share

Basic/Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/
(loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if
any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/
expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Goods and Services tax input credit

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in
the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and
when there is reasonable certainty in availing/utilising the credits.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 2.1 to 2.20, the management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying
judgments, estimates and assumptions including sensitivity analysis
and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully
recover the carrying amount of trade receivables including unbilled



receivables, goodwill, intangible assets and investments. The
eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these
financial statements.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result
from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts
of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries.
In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial
statements has used internal and external sources of information
including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts.
The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions
used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount
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of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these financial statements.

Since December 2019, COVID - 19, a new strain of Coronavirus, has
spread globally, including India. This event significantly affects economic
activity worldwide and, as a result, could effect the operations and
results of the Company. The impact of the Coronavirus on our business
will depend on future developments that cannot be reliably predicted,
including action to contain or treat the disease and multiple its impact
on the economies of the affected carrier among others.

The impact of the global health pandemic, might be different from
the estimated is as the date of approval of these financial results
and the Company will closely monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Description of Assets Land - Buildings - Plant and Office | Furniture and Vehicles Computers Total
Freehold (Own use) | Equipments | equipments fixtures

l.  Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2018 195.05 2,474.70 2,491.96 125.01 502.29 52.20 54.44 5,895.65
Additions - 272.08 2.75 12.85 29.69 - 4.01 321.38
Disposals - - - - - (38.17) - (38.17)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 195.05 2,746.78 2,494.711 137.86 531.98 14.03 58.45 6,178.86
IIl.  Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April, 2018 - 619.06 1,256.77 80.71 186.12 51.67 39.99 2,234.32
Depreciation expense for the year - 98.32 195.97 20.99 59.99 0.53 7.55 383.35
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - (38.17) - (38.17)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 - 717.38 1,452.74 101.70 246.11 14.03 47.54 2,579.50
Ill.  Net carrying amount (I-11)

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 195.05 2,029.40 1,041.97 36.16 285.87 - 10.91 3,599.36
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 195.05 1,855.64 1,235.19 44.30 316.17 0.53 14.45 3,661.33
I.  Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2019 195.05 2,746.78 2,494.71 137.86 531.98 14.03 58.45 6,178.86
Additions - - - 10.80 - - 0.45 11.25
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 195.05 2,746.78 2,494.71 148.66 531.98 14.03 58.90 6,190.11
Il.  Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April, 2019 - 717.38 1,452.74 101.70 246.11 14.03 47.54 2,579.50
Depreciation expense for the year - 102.63 190.64 20.99 62.88 - 5.72 382.86
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 - 820.01 1,643.38 122.69 308.99 14.03 53.26 2,962.36
Ill.  Net carrying amount (I-11)

Balance as at 31 March, 2020 195.05 1,926.77 851.33 25.97 222.99 - 5.64 3,227.75
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 195.05 2,029.40 1,041.97 36.16 285.87 - 10.91 3,599.36
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Intangible Assets

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs) Computer
Description of Assets Computer Total Description of Assets Software Total
Software Ill.  Net carrying amount (I-11)
I.  Gross Carrying Amount As At 31 March, 2020 - -
Balance as at 1 April, 2018 59.16 59.16 As At 31 March, 2019 - -
Additions - - Refer note 2 for Company’s policy on recognition and measurement of
Disposals - - Property Plant , Equipment, Intangible and Depreciation/amortisation
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 59.16 59.16 methods used.
. Movement of Capital Work in Progress
Il.  Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April, 2018 59.16 59.16 (Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Amortisation expense for the year - - Particulars As at As at
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 59.16 59.16 Opening Balance - 99.69
Ill.  Net carrying amount (I-11) Aditions 21.00 214.13
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 Sublotal 21.00 31382
: Capitalised during the year - (313.82)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 - - Closing Balance 27.00 B
(Amounts in INR Lakhs) Investments
Computer Particulars As at As at
Description of Assets Software Total 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
I.  Gross Carrying Amount Cost
Balance as at 1 April, 2019 59.16 59.16 Ungquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Additions - - Investments in Associate ............c..ccccoeeeeinnnne 1,300.00 1,300.00
Disposals - - Mahindra Integrated Township Limited
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 59.16 59.16 1,30,00,000 Shares @ INR 10 Per Share
Il.  Accumulated amortisation Investments in Joint Venture ............ccccoveen 10,200.00 10,200.00
Balance as at 1 April, 2019 59.16 59.16 Mahindra Industrial Park chennai Limited
Amortisation expense for the year - - 10,20,00,000 Shares @ INR 10 Per Share
Eliminated on disposal of assets = = Total Unguoted Investments at Cost............. 11,500.00 11,500.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 59.16 59.16
Other Financial assets
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Advances,Considered good
Advances for purchase of 1and - UNSECUIEA............ccieiiireriiiieieicisieeee s - 34.05 - 34.05
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
FIXEd ABPOSIES UNMGBI TIBIN ... 4.53 - 4.03 -
RECOVEIADIE EXDENSE™ ......vviiiiviiscte ettt bbbttt - 0.19 - 50.18
TOtaAl OENEE @SSEES.........c..oviviicieicce ettt 4.53 34.24 4.03 84.23

*31st March-19: Recoverable Expense represents excess interest on Overdraft charged and acknowledged by HDFC Bank Limited.

Other Assets
Particulars

Advances

As at 31 March, 2020

AQVANCES 10 BMPIOYEES ...ttt bbbttt bbbt -

Advances for purchase of land - secured***

Advances to suppliers considered good

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at 31 March, 2019

Non-current Current Non-current Current
0.16 - -

- 3,347.04 - 3,347.04

- 13.37 - -

- 3,360.57 - 3,347.04




Particulars

Others

Advance income-tax (Net of Provision for Tax FY 2019-20 Rs. 3101.47 lakhs, FY 2018-19 Rs. 4,131.76

lakhs)*

Security Deposits

Prepaid Expenses

Balances with statutory/government authorities (Other than Income tax)**

TOtAl OENEE ASSEES ...........oviviiciecce ettt
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As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Non-current Current Non-current Current
2,112.40 - 1,800.71 -
60.28 3.50 56.03 3.50

- 15.45 - 9.85

32.90 - - 31.35
2,205.58 18.95 1,856.74 44.70
2,205.58 3,379.52 1,856.74 3,391.74

* 31-03-2020: Advance income-tax includes payments made under protest Rs. 433.78 Lakhs and Refunds issued by the income tax department and adjusted

by department Rs. 692.52 lakhs.

31-03-2019: Advance income-tax includes payments made under protest Rs. 353.16 Lakhs, Refunds issued by the income tax department and adjusted by
department Rs. 692.52 lakhs and provision for income tax netted of Rs. Rs.210.26 Lakhs.

** 31-03-2020 and 31-3-2019: Balances with Government authorities includes payment of Rs. 29.79 Lakhs made under protest against service tax demands.

*** Advance for purchase of Land is secured by equitable Mortgage by deposit of title deeds of 39.19 acres of land at Varadarajapuram , Kancheepuram Dist.

Tamilnadu.

Inventories
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Work in progress (representing cost of land

and related expenditure)............coocveeecureininne 27,573.70 26,991.17
INVENTOTY ..o 25.67 17.18
Total Inventories ................ccocoooveiiiiicnnnn, 27,599.37 27,008.35

()  The Cost of inventories recognised as expenses during the year in
respect of continuing operations was INR 571.23 Lakhs (31t March
2019 was INR 5,317.92 Lakhs).

(i)  The Carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for liabilities
- Refer note 12 A Non Current Borrowings.

(i) Mode of Valuation of Inventories is Cost or Net Realisable Value
whichever is lower.

(iv) Borrowing costs inventorised relates to interest on borrowings
referred in Notes 12A and 12B considered in the ratio of land
inventories pending to be developed to the total inventories.

(v) Based on detailed assessment and evaluation of impact of the
COVID-19 epidemic, the management concluded that the realiseable
value of these inventories will not be lower than the carrying value as
stated above.

Trade Receivables
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Trade Receivables:

Unsecured Considered Good.............ccc.......... 564.86 1,650.97
Receivables with significant credit risk............ 71.25 58.02
Less: Provision for expected credit losses....... (71.25) (58.02)
Total Trade Receivables....................c.co........ 564.86 1,650.97

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the average credit period
on service rendered is as per the terms of the service agreement with
clients. Credit period allowed to customers varies between 7 days to
30 days.

Refer Note No.31 for Credit Risk Management on Receivables.

9.

10.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

— On current acCoUNtS .......ccveveereereriereieeenns 171.27 110.15
Cash on hand........coveninincniniecs 0.05 0.13
Total Cash and cash equivalents................... 171.32 110.28

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per

Balance Sheet.........ccoovvvenicnrceecees 171.32 110.28
Overdraft with Banks (Note 12B) .................... (3,816.97) (8,520.09)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per

Statement of Cashflow...................cccccoeein. (3,645.65) (8,409.81)

Equity
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Authorized shares
2,50,00,000 Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs.10

each with Voting rights ..........c.cccoeevvieeinnns 2,500.00 2,500.00

50,00,000 Unclassified Shares of Rs.10 each

with Voting fights.........ccoveriviverinieien 500.00 500.00

65,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable preference

shares of Rs. 100 €ach........c.cccocoevvierinnns 6,500.00 6,500.00
9,500.00 9,500.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

2,00,00,000 Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs.10

each with Voting rights ..........cccovviviviiinne. 2,000.00 2,000.00

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

share capital................c.ccoooooiiis 2,000.00 2,000.00
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(U]

(ii)

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars Opening Changes during

Balance

Ordinary Equity Shares
Year Ended 31 March, 2020

NO. OF SNAIBS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et s et ettt et et ettt ettt et et ettt et et ettt et ettt ettt ettt tenas 2,00,00,000
AAMOUNE. ..ottt ettt et e et et e et et e eeaseeese s eseee s eseae s eeese s esess et et ees et es e et et es e s et es et et es e s et es et et ese et ete e et ete e eterenen 2,000.00
Year Ended 31 March, 2019

NO. OF SNAIBS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et s et enetenas 2,00,00,000
AMIOUN ...ttt ettt e st ettt e ettt e st sttt e st ettt sttt sttt en s bttt s s st n s naes 2,000.00

(a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

the year

Closing
Balance

2,00,00,000

2,000.00

2,00,00,000
2,000.00

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.
Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. The dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General

Meeting. Repayment of capital will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
Repayment of capital will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2020
No. % holding in the
class
Equity shares with voting rights
— Mahindra Lifespace DeVelopers LIMIted..........coccrriiueiriiieniiieisseeesesees e 1,77,99,999 89%
— Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation LIMited ............cccoveeuerreieniniriese e 22,00,000 1%

As at 31 March, 2019

No.

1,77,99,999
22,00,000

% holding in the
class

89%
11%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Other Equity

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Other Equity

General Reserve Capital Retained Total

Redemption earnings
Reserve

Balance as at 1 APFil, 2018 .............c..cooviviiiieece e 345.00 6,500.00 4,679.31 11,524.31
PrOfIt fOF the YBAT.......eeiecee et - - 1,634.45 1,634.45
Other COMPIENENSIVE INCOME ..........vuieviiecieiececte ettt sttt snas - - 1.55 1.55
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 ..o s 345.00 6,500.00 6,315.31 13,160.31
LOSS TOF BB YBA ...t - - (857.46) (857.46)
Other COMPIENENSIVE (LOSS) .....vvuvureiiiieieiiiei et - - (4.30) (4.30)
Dividend Payout inCIUAING DDT .........cuuriuruiimriieieieissiseeseiesseiset sttt enessees - - (241.11) (241.11)
Balance as at 31 March, 2020.................coouiuiuiimriireieies et 345.00 6,500.00 5,212.44 12,057.44

General Reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There is no policy of regular

transfer. Items included under General Reserve shall not be reclassified back into the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Capital Redemption Reserve: The Capital Redemption Reserve was created against redemption of Preference Shares.

Retained Earnings: This reserve represents cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can be
utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
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12A. Non current borrowings

Details of Long term Borrowings of the Company: (Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Description of the instrument Currency of Coupon Repayment Number of Date of  Amortised cost ~ Amortised cost
Loan Rate Bullet (or)  Instalments earliest as at as at
Instalment Redemption 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

(or)

Conversion

A.  Secured Borrowings:
a)  Term Loans

() From Financial Institution
75% of Sales/
HDFC Limited - Term LOan ........ccccceueuevecveeriieeieeeceens INR 9.10% to 12% lease proceeds 12 Aug-21 24,237.16 20,327.33
and Instalment

Total Secured Borrowings................ccccococeviieniinninns 24,237.16 20,327.33

Total Non Current Borrowings ................ccocoooeeniccnnnnne 24,237.16 20,327.33

Term Loan from Financial Institution - Secured Borrowings

HDFC Term Loan - Sanctioned amount INR 32,500.00 Lakhs From HDFC Ltd carries an interest of HDFC CPLR - 895 points. Principal to be repaid in 8 equal
quarterly instalments , commencing from August 2021, after a moratorium of 38 months. Current prevailing rate of interest is 9.95%. Further, It is mandatory to
prepay Principal using 75% of Land lease/sale proceeds from the date of availing this term loan.

The Term loans is secured by equitable Mortgage by deposit of title deeds of 60.438 acres of land at Mahindra World City , Chengalpattu with carrying
value of INR 2,652 Lakhs and 236.027 acres of land in NH16 near Ponneri/Gummidipundi with a carrying value of INR 19,588 Lakhs.

There are no defaults in case of either interest or principal with respect to payments for the above borrowings.

Terms of Repayment of terms loans are as under
As at 31 March, 2020

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Amount Terms of Rate of
OQutstanding Repayment Interest

Principal to be repaid in 8 equal quarterly instalments,
HDFC Limited Term Loan (SECUrEd)..........coevreerierreerreiriinrericinians 24,237.16 commencing from Aug 2021, after a moratorium of 38 9.95%

months. Current prevailing rate of interest is 9.95%.
TOMAlL ... s 24,237.16

As at 31 March, 2019
Particulars Amount Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest
Outstanding
Principal to be repaid in 8 equal quarterly instalments,
HDFC Limited Term Loan (SECUred)...........cccvvwrrucurvenivcrerenninne 20,327.33 commencing from Aug 2021, after a moratorium of 38 10.40%
months. Current prevailing rate of interest is 10.40%.

Total..... 20,327.33

12B. Current borrowings (Amortised cost)
Details of Current Borrowings of the Company:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Description of the instrument Currency of Loan Coupon Rate As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

A.  Unsecured Borrowings at amortised cost:
HDFC Bank Limited - Overdraft of INR 25 Crores (PY INR 50 Crores) .........ccoeueevererreeneuninseisinseeieereens INR 9.35% 2,159.17 3,706.49

Axis Bank Limted - Overdraft of INR 25 Crores (PY INR 50 Crores) - 4,813.60
Mahindra Residential Developers Limited - ICD Loan repayable within 1 year INR 9.50% 2,000.00 -
Total UnSecured BOITOWINGS..............ccoocueiiiieiiiieieice ettt 4,159.17 8,520.09
B.  Secured Borrowings at amortised cost:

Axis Bank Limted - Overdraft of INR 25 CIOTES .........cccovevevieeeiieiieeeieeeeeeee ettt INR 8.60% 1,657.80 -
Total Secured BOITOWINGS................coouiiiieiicieieice ettt 1,657.80 -
Total CUITENt BOFTOWINGS ........c..oviviiicieice ettt 5,816.97 8,520.09

Axis Bank Overdraft is secured during the current financial year:
— by First pari passu charge of current assets of the Company excluding inventories.
- by Second/Residual charge on Lands mortgaged to HDFC Limited for Term loan availed. (Refer note no. 12A)
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13.

14.

15.
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Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Particulars As at March 31, 2020

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2019

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Deposits
Security deposits reCeiVed frOM IBSSEES .........c.ruriuirieiiriieiciriere s 1.42 - 1.09 -
1.42 - 1.09 -
Others
Payable 0n pUIChASE O PPE..........c.oicer ettt - 5.00 - 5.00
Earnest money deposit - 2.80 - 2.80
Rental/Other deposit from customers.... - 33.18 - 20.92
- 40.98 - 28.72
Total Other Financial LIabilities................ccccccooriiiiirece e 1.42 40.98 1.09 28.72
Other liabilities
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Non-current Current Non-current Current
AQVANCE TTOM CUSTOMIEIS ...ttt - 392.00 - 67.00
Statutory dues payable - 23.39 - 248.96
Deferred Income..... 952.00 88.25 1,025.72 106.44
Unearned Income 44718 3.83 382.95 -
Total Other Liabilities.... 1,399.18 507.47 1,408.67 422.40
Income Tax *** The Tax Rate used for 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019
(@) Income Tax recognised in profit or loss reconciliations above are the corporate tax rate of 29.12%
(Amounts in INR Lakhs) pay_able by Corporate Entities in India on taxable profits under
) Indian Income Tax Act laws.
Particulars For the For the

Year Ended Year Ended (¢) Movement in deferred tax balances

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Current Tax:

In respect of current year - 1,060.00 Particulars
Deferred Tax....................... (471.27) (240.51) .
Income tax of earlier years 27.12 279.00 Tax effect of items ﬁ .t L item
constituting deferred
Total income tax (credit)/expense on tax Liabilities
income from operations ..................... (444.15) 1,098.49 Property, Plant and
(b) Reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to EQUIpMENT. ...
income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss is as follows: Interest Inventorised..
(Amounts in INR Lakhs) FVTPL Financials
Particulars For the For the Asset & Liabiltes......
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 otat Deterred Tax
Profit before tax.............c..cccceveinnnn (1,301.61) 273294 T
Income tax expense calculated at Tax effect of items
statutory rate™ ™ ... (379.00) 796.00 constituting deferred
Disallowance u/s 14A for expense tax assets
incurred on investment ............cccocceene. 33.49 33.49 Section 43B
Dividend income exempt from tax......... - (44.00) disallowances. .
Changes based on return of income Business loss..........
filed for the year ........ccoovevniennienne (114.41) 279.00 Unabsorbed
Impact of difference between depreciation depreciation loss......
as per Income tax act book depreciation ... 41.38 32.12 Provision for doubtful
Non deductible exepenses under
INCOME taX..v.veeecesce s 15.26 -
Changes in Deferred tax asset/Liability MAT credit utilised
due to Effective rate changes............... - - during the year ........
Others- Provision for Doubtful debts,
PIOVISIONS ..o (40.87) 1.8 Total Deferred Tax
Asset...........ccooeeee.
(444.15) 1,098.49
. Net Deferred Tax
Income tax (credit) / expense Liabilities ..............
recognised In profit or loss ................ (444.15) 1,098.49

For the Year ended 31 March, 2020

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Opening For the Earlier year Closing
Balance year Adjustments Balance
481.37 (135.50) - 345.87
2,361.92 (56.89) - 2,305.03
38.88 (22.70) - 16.18
2,882.17 (215.09) - 2,667.08
12.33 5.09 - 17.42
- 179.00 - 179.00
- 70.01 - 70.01
16.90 3.85 - 20.75
634.21 - - 634.21
- - - (17.96)
663.44 257.95 - 903.43
2,218.73 (473.04) - 1,763.65
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16.

17.

18.

Particulars
Balance
Tax effect of items
constituting deferred
tax Liabilities
Property, Plant and
Equipment.............
Interest
Inventorised..........
FVTPL Financials
Asset & Liabilties..

475.04

1,636.84

92.10

Opening  For the year

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
For the Year ended 31 March, 2019

Earlier year
Adjustments

64.06  (57.73)

(245.75) 970.83

(53.22) -

Closing
Balance

481.37
2,361.92

38.88

Total Deferred Tax

Liabilities ............. 2,203.98

(234.91) 913.10

2,882.17

Tax effect of items
constituting deferred
tax assets

Section 43B
disallowances........
Provision for
doubtful debts.......
MAT Credit............
MAT credit utilised
during the year ..... -
FVTPL Financials
Asset & Liabilties..

23.84

16.90
840.00

272.10

4.95 (16.46)

- 274.15

- (272.10)

12.33

16.90
1,114.15

(479.94)

Total Deferred Tax
1,152.84

4.95 (14.41)

663.44

Net Deferred Tax

Liabilities ............. 1,051.14

(239.86)  927.51

2,218.73

Provisions

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2020

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at 3

1 March, 2019

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Employee Benefits (Refer note 29)
Gratuity oo - 28.17 13.36 3.82
Leave Encashment.............. 28.23 3.46 22.30 2.88
Total Provisions ................. 28.23 31.63 35.66 6.70
Trade Payables
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises™ .. 75.58 48.23
Trade payable - Other than micro and small
BNEEIPIISES . ovveeieceeirecie e 754.46 1,027.77
830.04 1,076.00

* (@)

Trade Payables are payables in respect of the amount due on account

of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of
business. Usually, Credit period with vendors varies from 15 days to

30 days.

(i)  Refer Note 34 for Disclosures on Micro and Small Enterprises.

Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Land Lease Premium
Sale of land

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the

year ended

31 March, 2020
466.70

912.45

For the

year ended

31 March, 2019
7,529.70
2,863.25

19.

20.

21,

Particulars

Rental iNCOME.........coveuieeerecees
Operation and maintenance income..................
Club membership fees..........cccevvviverririreriiinns
Club Annual subscription fees............ccccceeunee.
Club operating income
Project Management Fees

Total Revenue from operations ......................
Other Income

Particulars

Other non operating income
Transfer Fees.....
Dividend Income.....
Liability no longer required written back...........
Profit on sale of PPE...........cccoovivimrniiiinnins
Interest on Bank Fixed deposits ..............cc.......
Miscellaneous INCOME ........ccevrvrrverrceienriennees

Total Other Income ................cccooverncnnns

Cost of Projects

Particulars

Inventories at the beginning of the year
WOrK=iN-progress .......ccveeeeerenercerereeeneneeeeenens
Add: Expenses Incurred during the year

Land and Construction Costs

Iterest COSt ..o

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
WOrK-iN-Progress ........ceeeeeeercerieereerceniennns

Total Cost of Projects ...............cc.ccocoeviirenns

Operation & Maintenance Expenses

Particulars

Repairs & Maintenance..............ccccceveveviverennas
SEOUMEY e
Electrical & Mechanical Maintenance................
HOUSEKEEPING ....voeeeeeereceereee e
Power & Fuel

Landscaping maintenance
Rates & TaXES......covvvereciririeieire s
Bus shuttle ...
Other EXPENSES........cveveeiirriereirieeeisisieiene

Total Operation & Maintenance expenses......

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
74.79 82.92

2,338.96 2,411.69

68.06 67.79

60.45 56.24

245.66 223.09

52.16 72.00

4,219.23 13,306.68

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

4.85 50.21

- 149.50
25.78 -
- 8.26

1.16 1.03
107.33 60.56
139.12 269.56

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

26,991.17 30,920.74
30.08 50.60
1,123.68 1,337.75
27,573.70 26,991.17
571.23 5,317.92

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
291.65 324.84
266.93 237.39
462.69 379.36
177.06 174.11
214.30 196.66
117.16 110.32
67.85 108.07
95.47 99.42
50.44 32.89
1,743.55 1,663.06
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23.

24.

24

Employee Benefits expense

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Salaries and wages including bonus* .............. 371.74 288.72
Contributions to provident and other funds ...... 17.78 13.12
Staff welfare expenses 21.75 20.45
Total Employee benefits expense 411.27 322.29

* Includes charge for Equity Stock options recovered by Mahindra
Lifespaces Developers Limited amounting to Rs. 4.83 Lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 5.06 Lakhs)

Finance Costs
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Particulars

(@)  Interest expense on:

(i) Term loan 2,350.92 2,585.54
(i) Loan from Related parties 25.02 11.87
(iiiy  Cash Credit Limited.. 566.59 861.92
(iv)  Other Interest .... 29.38 4.07
Less: Interest inventorised (1,123.68) (1,337.77)
Net Finance Cost ..................cooovvvviiiicieiennes 1,848.23 2,125.63

Other expenses
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Power and fuel 75.68 81.63
Rent including lease rentals 10.64 10.60
Repairs and maintenance 37.39 62.40
Insurance 13.13 27.19
Rates and taxes 8.42 16.18
Communication 28.85 14.66
Travelling and conveyance 23.00 31.34
Printing and stationery 4.25 5.78
Business promotion 93.00 300.18
Office Maintenance expenses 38.65 45.39
Legal and professional 98.48 158.45
Payments to auditors* 11.60 10.60
Directors sitting fees 1.00 2.00
Director Commission - 27.00
Donations - 1.76
Services outsourced 137.38 111.43
Allowances for expected credit losses 13.23 -
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 23.01 11.05
(refer Note No 25)
Club expenses 83.87 111.63
Miscellaneous expenses 1.23 1.78
Total Other eXpenses.............cccoovvvevierennns 702.81 1,031.05

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

* Payment to auditor (excluding taxes) For the For the
year ended year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Statutory Audit 8.50 7.50
Certification and Other Services 3.10 3.10
11.60 10.60

25.

26.

27.

28.

Expense on Corporate Social Responsibility (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Contribution to Nanhi Kali foundation................ 11.51 5.53

Support to School for Enhancing Quality of 2.04 5.52
EdUCALiON......ccvieieicerce e

Supporting Primary Health Centre..................... 1.74 -

Awareness programmes - Solid waste 1.72 -
management & Others ..........ccoceevvevevririrevennnn.

23.01 11.05

Segment information

Business segments

The Company operates in only one business segment, i.e. ‘lease of land
and properties constructed’ based on the nature of the services and
products, the risks and returns etc. This has been determined in the manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Manager regarded
as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The Company operates
only in India. The conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate
geographical disclosure within India is considered necessary.

Earnings per Share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to owners (857.46) 1,634.45
of the Company
Weighted average number of equity shares 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
(in Nos)
Earnings per share from continuing operations (4.29) 8.17

- Basic and Diluted (in Rs. )((face value of
Rs.10/- each)

Contingent liabilities & Capital Commitments

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Particulars

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not
provided for)

Tax on Borrowing costs disallowed

A. Income Tax Notice received for FY 2009-10,
2010-11, 2011-12, 2012-13 and 2013-14:
Tax on borrowing costs inventorised in books
but claimed as expenditure under Income Tax
and disputed by the department - Rs. 3556.96
lakhs (for the years ended March 31, 2010,
March 31, 2011, March 31, 2012, March 31,
2013 and March 31, 2014 is Rs.332.49 Lakhs
, Rs. 596.07 Lakhs, Rs. 757.43 Lakhs, 887.48
lakhs and Rs. 983.49 Lakhs respectively).
However, even if this liability crystallizes,

there would be future tax benefits available on
account of timing differences and Impact has
been quantified only to the extent of Interest
cost and impact arising out of difference in
income tax rates.

860.50 816.61

B. Disallowance of expenditure under section
14A on investments in FY 2010-11, 2012-13
and 2013-14.

76.28 76.28
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Other Matters disputed in the above years......

The above amount is based on demand raised,
which the Company is contesting with the
concerned authorities. Outflows, if any, arising
out of this claim would depend on the outcome
of the decision of the appellate authorities

and Company’s rights for future appeals. No
reimbursements are expected.

Service tax demands received ... 493.21 462.99

Total Contingent Liabilities ............................ 1,429.99 1,355.88

The above amount is based on demand raised, which the Company is
contesting with the concerned authorities. Outflows, if any, arising out of
this claim would depend on the outcome of the decision of the appellate
authorities and Company’s rights for future appeals.

Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes Provident fund contribution to defined
contribution plans for the employees. Under the scheme, the
company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the
payroll cost to the fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs.
17.78 Lakhs (PY Rs. 13.12 Lakhs) for Provident fund & Other funds
contributions in the statement of profit and Loss. The contributions
payable to these plans by the company are at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme.
b) Defined Benefit Plans
The Company’s obligation towards gratuity is defined benefit plan.
The gratuity expense is included under ‘Employee Benefit Expenses’
in Note 22 Employee benefits expense. The company has funded
the gratuity Liability through LIC Scheme. The details of actuarial
valuation are given below:
Gratuity:
The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The
benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee.
The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and
once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination
of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable
irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the
group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of
India through its Gratuity Trust Fund. Through its defined benefit plans the
Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which
are detailed below:

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however,
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt
investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference
to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial
valuations were as follows:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Gratuity (Funded)

2019-20 2018-19
Net Liabilities recognized in the balance sheet
Net Liabilities recognized in the balance sheet 53.69 41.37
Fair Value of Plan @SSets.........c.couvivniveeiiniieiins 25.52 24.19
Liabilities recognised in the balance sheet................ 28.17 17.18
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
PaSt SEIVICE COSL......c.evevereieiricieiieeree s - -
CUrTeNt SErVICE COSt......vvvvrrreiierieeseireeceeeiesieseieens 3.66 2.85
Interest cost. 3.02 2.16
Expected return on plan assets (1.44) (2.19)
Actuarial (gainS)/LOSSES .......ccvvreermeeriiirerereisiseneins 5.75 7.86
Total eXPENSES...........ccevvriieiiiiecec e 10.99 10.68
Change in present value of Defined Benefit obligation
Present Value of the obligation at the beginning of the
VBT oot 41.37 28.64
Current Service cost... 3.66 2.85

INErESt COSE ... 3.02 2.16

Actuarial (Gains) /Losses... 5.75 7.86
Benefits Paid (0.11) (0.14)
Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year... 53.69 41.37

Change in fair value of plan assets
Present value of plan assets as the beginning of the year.... 2419 22.14

Expected return on plan assets...... 1.44 2.19
Contributions made............. - -
Benefits paid and Charges .. (0.11) (0.14)
Present value of plan assets at the end of the year.... 25.52 24.19
Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount Rate 6.47% 7.30%
Expected return on plan assets 6.47% 7.30%
Expected rate of Salary increase.... 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition Rate 10.00% 10.00%

MOFEAIIEY ... LIC (2006-08) Ultimate

mortality tables
Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate
NEXE YBA........coiiiiiiieee s 28.17 17.18

Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take
account of inflation, seniority, promotions, increments and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Basis used to determine expected rate of return - The Gratuity Fund is
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India and they have not
made available the information on major categories of plan assets and the
expected rate of return on each class of plan assets.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Experience adjustment as for the years

provided by actuary: 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16
Present value of DBO 41.37 28.64 24.02 36.99 35.97
Fair value of plan assets 25.52 24.19 22.14 24.36 31.98
Funded status [Surplus/

(Deficit)] - - - - -

Experience gain/(loss)
adjustments on plan
liabilities (1.44) (2.19) (1.01) (2.11) (2.12)

Experience gain/(loss)
adjustments on plan assets (0.32) 0.52 (0.51) 0.72 0.87
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Particulars For the year
ended

31 March, 2019

For the year
ended
31 March, 2020
Actuarial assumptions for long-term
compensated absences

Discount rate 6.47% 7.30%
Expected return on plan assets 6.47% 7.30%
Salary escalation 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition 10.00% 10.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India
securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the
inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year Change in | Impact on defined benefit

Assumption obligation

Increase in | Decrease in
assumption | assumption
Discount Rate 2020 0.50% 52.18 55.28
2019 0.50% 40.25 42.56
Salary Growth 2020 0.50% 54.60 52.79
Rate 2019 0.50% 42.06 40.58

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions
the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has
been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
Balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses did not change compared to previous period.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Year 1 5.01 4.16
Year 2 4.86 410
Year 3 19.13 3.88
Year 4 3.31 16.46
Year 5 3.29 2.33
Next 5 Years 238.73 17.76

Plan of Assets

The fair value of Company’s pension plan asset as of 31 March, 2020 and 31
March, 2019 by category are as follows:

Asset Category As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Deposits with Insurance companies 100% 100%

30. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing

basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only the period of the
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revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

COVID -19 Impact assessment :

The Company assessed its performance and future projections in light
of the developments due to COVID 19 situation worldwide and has
reassessed the impact that it may cause on the Company’s financial and
operational performance .The Company may experience delay in getting
new prospects and signing of lease deeds which may have an impact on
the inflow of funds during the lock down period. There could be delay in
inflow of Operations and Maintenance income. The company’s operations
of Club room renting and other services provided in the club has been
suspended post COVID -10 outbreak uas per government mandate and is
expected to resume operations post lock down period. The management
expects the company to resume normalcy within a period of 3 to 4 months
post lockdown with some impact on overall operations, collections and
deals closure through the financial year. The Company has sufficient
working capital facilities to meet the Operations expenses and pay off
the vendors and bankers in the immediate 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements . Based on the above assessment,
the management is of the view that Company will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

Financial Instruments

Capital management

The Company manages capital risk in order to maximize shareholders’
profit by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure through monitoring of
financial ratios, such as debt-to-equity ratio and net borrowings-to-equity
ratio on a monthly basis and implements capital structure improvement
plan when necessary. There is no change in the overall capital risk
management strategy of the Company compared to last year.

The Company uses debt ratio as a capital management index and
calculates the ratio as total debt divided by total equity. Total liabilities and
total equity are based on the amounts stated in the financial statements.

The Company is not subject to externally enforced regulation.

Debt-to-equity ratio as of 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 is
as follows:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

DEDE (A) .o 30,054.13 28,847.42
EQUILY (B) vt 14,057.44 15,160.31
Debt Equity Ratio (A/B)......ccovevverreiuiinnens 214 1.90

Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2020

Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Total
Costs
Non-current Assets
Investment in
Associates............ 1,300.00 - - 1,300.00
Investment in Joint
Ventures................ 10,200.00 - - 10,200.00
Other Financial
Assets ... 4.53 - - 4.53
Current Assets
Trade Receivables........ 564.86 - - 564.86
Cash and Cash
equivalents................... 171.32 - - 171.32
Other Financial Assets... 34.24 - - 34.24
12,274.95 - - 12,274.95
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Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings .........cccc.ce..

Other Financial
Liabilities .......c.cocovveenene

Current Liabilities

Borrowings...................

Trade Payables ............

Other Financial

Liabilities

— Non Derivative
Financial Liabilities.....

Non-current Assets

Investment in
Associates...........

Investment in Joint
Ventures...............

Other Financial

Current Assets
Trade Receivables.......

Cash and Cash
equivalents.................

Other Financial Assets..

Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2020

Amortised FVTPL Fvocl Total
Costs

24,237.16 - - 24,237.16
1.42 - - 1.42
5,816.97 - - 5,816.97
830.04 - - 830.04
40.98 - - 40.98
30,926.57 - - 30,926.57
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2019

Amortised FVTPL FvOCI Total

Costs

1,300.00 - - 1,300.00
10,200.00 - - 10,200.00
4.03 - - 4.03
1,650.97 - - 1,650.97
110.28 - - 110.28
84.23 - - 84.23
13,349.51 - - 13,349.51
20,327.33 - - 20,327.33

Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Total
Costs
Other Financial
Liabilities .. 1.09 - - 1.09
Current Liabilities
Borrowings...... . 8,520.09 - - 8,520.09
Trade Payables ........... 1,076.00 - - 1,076.00
Other Financial Liabilities -
— Non Derivative Financial
Liabilities.................. 28.72 - - 28.72
29,953.23 - - 29,953.23

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order to manage the aforementioned
risks, the Company operates a risk management policy and a program that
performs close monitoring of and responding to each risk factors.

CREDIT RISK

(i)

Credit risk management

The amount of trade receivable from Land leasing, Industrial park
maintenance service and property leasing activities as appearing in
the balance sheet of the company shows the amount due from the
customers to whom the Industrial park Maintenance charges, water
charges and property Lease services are provided. Company executes
Land leasing agreement with customers only entire lease premium is
paid by customers and hence no risk of credit loss in dues relating
to Land leasing premium. Further, As per the company’s policy, every
customer has to deposit 3 to 6 months of Maintenance charges and/
or monthly lease rentals with the company and as per the terms of
the agreement with the customer’s, company is entitled to adjust the
pending dues against the deposits taken from customer and hence,
company is not exposed to any credit loss risk. Further there has been
no instance in past which shows that the company has written off
any significant any dues pending and is not exposed to a credit risk.
During the year to the extent where recoverability of debt is doubtful the
company has made provision for expected credit loss.

LIQUIDITY RISK

(U]

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Company’s
short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount
disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities

31 March, 2020

Non-interest bearing
Trade Payable
Capital Creditors
Other Financial Liabilities...

Variable interest rate instruments

Short term Borrowing — Principal
Loan term Borrowing — Principal

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Less than 1-3 3 Years 5 years
1 Year Years to 5 Years and above
830.04 - - -

5.00 - - -
35.98 - - 1.42
5,816.97 - - -
- 20,174.66 4,062.50 -
6,688.00 20,174.66 4,062.50 1.42
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1-3 3 Years 5 years
1 Year Years to 5 Years and above

31 March, 2019
Non-interest bearing

TrAdE PAYADIE ...t 1,076.00 - - -

CaAPILAl CrEAIIONS ... 5.00 - - -

Other Financial LIabilitIes..............ovevriieeiceeei e 23.72 - - 1.09
Variable interest rate instruments

Short term Borrowing - PANCIPAL ...........civiiiiiiiieiciseeise s 8,520.09 - - -

Loan term Borrowing = PriNCIPAl ..........cccovueueiiiieiiiciesice e - - 20,327.33 -
TOAL ... 9,624.81 - 20,327.33 1.09

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Company could be forced to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount will not be payable under the arrangement.

(iii) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Secured Bank Overdraft facility

— EXPIring WIthin ONE YBAT ..o 1,163.03 1,459.91
Secured Bank Guarantee Limit (sub limit of CC Credit facility)

— EXPIring WIthin ONE YEAI .....cveiceeer et 20.00 20.00

1,183.03 1,479.91

(iv) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial
assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1-3 3 Years 5 years
1 Year Years to 5 Years and above

Non-derivative financial assets
31 March, 2020
Non-interest bearing

NON CUITENE INVESTMENL ...ttt enena - - - 11,500.00

SEOUMEY DEBPOSIES .....vvveiieci ittt an - - - -

Trade RECEIVADIES .........cuveiiiiieci et 564.86 -

Cash and Cash EQUIVAIBNTS ............cccueviiieiicie et 171.32 - - -

Other Current FINANCIAI ASSELS ...........ucveeriiiirieisie e 34.24 4.53 - -
TOAL ... 770.42 453 - 11,500.00

31 March, 2019

Non-interest bearing

NON CUITENE INVESTMENT ..o - - - 11,500.00
Trade RECEIVADIES ........veveieeeiieeeee ettt ettt 1,650.97 - - -
Cash and Cash equivalents.. . 110.28 - - -

Other Current FINANCIAl ASSEES ........c.cuevieiieirieie et 84.23 4.03 - -

TORAL ..o e 1,845.48 4.03 - 11,500.00

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and liabilities is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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MARKET RISK (Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market Year Currency Increase/ Effect on
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, decrease in financials
interest rate risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and basis points

commodity price risk. The objective of market risk management is

to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 31 March, 2020 INR +100 300.54

parameters, while optimising the return.
A , INR -100 (300.54)
There has been no significant changes to the company’s exposure to

market risk or the methods in which they are managed or measured. 31 March, 2019 INR +100 288.47

Currency Risk

. ) . ) INR -100 (288.47)
The Company undertakes transactions denominated only in India
Rupees and hence there is no risk of foreign exchange fluctuations. 32. Related party transactions
Interest rate risk Details of related parties:
Intgrest _rate_ risk is the rl_sk that the fair value or future cash flows of Description of relationship
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market - - - —
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in Holding Company Mahindra Lifespaces Developers Limited
market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term (MLDL)
debt obligations with floating interest rates. Joint Venture Mahindra Industrial Park Chennai Ltd
Interest rate sensitivity (MIPCL)
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on Associate Mahindra Integrated Township Limited (MITL)
exposure to interest rate for both derivative and non-derivative Associate Mahindra Residential Developers Limited
instruments at the end of reporting period. For floating rate (MRDL)
liabilities, analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability Key M ‘P |
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding ey Vianagement Fersonne

(KMP)
for the whole year.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably Business Head Mr. Jayaf“ B Manmadkar (Resigned as on
. o f 30th April 19)

possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With Mr. Vimal Agarwal (with effect from 15th
all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is October, 2019)

affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2020 and balances outstanding as at 31st March, 2020:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Transactions during the year Holding Company Joint Venture Associate Associate
(MLDL) (MIPCL) (MITL) (MRDL)
Land Sale - 449.80 - -
- (2,863.25) - -
Operation and maintenance Income - - 219.81 19.78
- - (221.81) (22.94)
Water charges - - 3.13 5.95
- - (8.74) (20.98)
Club income 0.49 0.88 1.65 0.37
- (0.36) (3.04) -
Services Provided - 55.21 11.53 5.32
- (72.00) (13.35) -
Service received 21.96 13.20 - -
(18.00) (12.00) - -
Dividend Received - - -
- - (149.50) -
Dividend Paid 178.00 - -
Reimbursement of expenses- Given - 3.97 - -
Reimbursement of expenses- Taken - 38.64 - -
- (435.54) - -
ESOP Costs 4.83 - - -
(5.06) - - -
Interest Paid - - - 25.02
- - - (11.87)
Inter Corporate Deposit received - - - 2,000.00
- - - (200.00)
Intercorporate Deposit/Term loan repaid - - - -
- - - (200.00)
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Transactions during the year Holding Company Joint Venture Associate Associate
(MLDL) (MIPCL) (MITL) (MRDL)

Balance Outstanding as at the year end
Internal corporate deposits(ICD) payable - - - 2,000.00
Security Deposits taken - - 66.27 23.07
- - (66.27) (23.07)
Receivables - 3.34 76.14 14.57
- (1.36) (72.17) (0.60)
Payables 16.21 - - 22.52
(11.93) - - -

Note: Figures in bracket relates to the previous year

33.

30

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

Particulars

Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
— investments in Equity
— trade and other receivables

— depOSits ANd SIMIIAT ASSES .....vvveveiircierieie ettt

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

— Long term loans from Financial INSHIULIONS ..........ccooiiiiiiieicccc e
- 0D limits from Bank
— Loans from related parties
— Trade and Other PAYADIES. ..........ccviiriiiriicecee et
— Other FInancial LIADIES .........o.veieiiiieccee e

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March, 2020

Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
— investments in Equity

— trade and other receivables
— depOSits AN SIMIIAr ASSELS .......cuevieirieieisieiiecee e

Financial liabilities

Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value

— Long term loans from Financial INSHIUGIONS ...........coiiiiiiicie e
— 0D limits from Bank
— loans from related parties
— trade and OtNEr PAYADIES .........c.iieiiiiiieici b
— Other Financial LIADIMIHIES .............ceviiiiiiiiirisei e

As at 31 March, 2020

Carrying amount

Fair value

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2019

Carrying amount

Fair value

11,500.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 11,500.00
564.86 564.86 1,650.97 1,650.97
38.77 38.77 88.26 88.26
12,103.63 12,103.63 13,239.23 13,239.23
24,237.16 24,237.16 20,327.33 20,327.33
3,816.97 3,816.97 8,520.09 8,520.09
2,000.00 2,000.00 - -
830.04 830.04 1,076.00 1,076.00
42.40 42.40 29.81 29.81
30,926.57 30,926.57 29,953.22 29,953.22
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- 11,500.00 - 11,500.00

- 564.86 - 564.86

- 38.77 - 38.77

- 12,103.63 - 12,103.63

- 24,237.16 - 24,237.16

- 3,816.97 - 3,816.97

- 2,000.00 - 2,000.00

- 830.04 - 830.04

- 42.40 - 42.40

- 30,926.57 - 30,926.57
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34.

35.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March, 2019 (Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost

— INVESTMENLS IN EQUILY.....ceeveceeeec s - 11,500.00 - 11,500.00
—1rade and OthEr FECEIVADIES.........oiuiriviiiiiiicieee e - 1,650.97 - 1,650.97
— dEPOSItS ANA SIMIIAT ASSELS .....vuveverciiiii bbb - 88.26 - 88.26
TORAL........c..oooeveieeeee e bbb en - 13,239.23 - 13,239.23

Financial liabilities

Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value

— Long term loans from Financial INSHIULONS ...........ooiruriieie s - 20,327.33 - 20,327.33
— 0D [IMItS fTOM BANK ........cvcviiereiiicieiiecte et - 8,520.09 - 8,520.09
— Trade and Other PAYADIES. ...........cvuiiiiiiiei bbb - 1,076.00 - 1,076.00
— Other Financial LIDilItIES .............c.ririiiriecerscscse s - 29.81 - 29.81

29,953.22 - 29,953.22

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

Additional Information to the Financial Statements
i) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

There are no overdue amounts payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, as at the reporting date or anytime during the year and hence no interest has been paid or payable accordingly no additional disclosures have

been made.
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Si. No. Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2019
1 Dues remaining unpaid

Principal 75.58 48.23
Interest - -

2 Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amount of payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

Principal paid beyond the appointed date - -

Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act - -

3 Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the appointed day -
during the year

4 Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest due as -
above are actually paid to the small enterprises

5 Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid -
Other Notes

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in these Ind AS financial statements (Refer Note 28 to the Ind AS
financial statements).

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts. The company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts. The company has not entered into any derivative contracts.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

31



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

36. Leases

Ministry of corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116 “ Leases” which is effective from 01t April, 2019. Pursuant to this, the company has applied this standard to
all lease contracts existing on 01st April, 2019 using the retrospective approach with the cumulative effect at the date of initial application. The adoption of the
Standard did not have any material impact to the financial results of the Company. Therefore, there is no effect of adopting Ind AS 116 on retained earnings as
at 01t April, 2019. Thus, on transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use’ asset and lease liability is NIL.

The Company has not applied the requirement of IND AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. Amount recognised
as expense in Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. 10.64 Lakhs.

37. Events after the Reporting period

No material events have occurred after the Balance sheet date and up to the approval of Financial statements.
38. Regrouping and Reclassification

Previous period/year figures have been regrouped/reclassified where found necessary, to conform to current period/year classification.
39. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors in the meeting on 22 April, 2020.

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Mahindra World City Developers Limited

A K Nanda Sangeeta Prasad

Chairman Director

(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02791944)
Place: Chenngi Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K A Muthukumaran
Date: 22" April 2020 Business Head (CEO) Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Annexure A

Form AOC-I

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
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Salient features of Financial Statements of Subsidiary as per Companies Act, 2013

Nature ASSOCIATES JOINT VENTURES
Name of Subsidiary Mahindra Integrated Mahindra Industrial park
Township Limited chennai Limited
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 04th May, 2006 22nd Dec, 2014
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the
holding company's reporting period NA NA
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries NA NA
Share Capital 5,000.00 17,000.00
Reserves & Surplus 1,806.73 315.99
Total Assets 22,141.64 32,116.68
Total Liabilities 15,334.91 14,800.69
Investments 6,629.48 -
Turnover 326.03 4,050.68
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (1,344.79) 223.23
Provision for taxation (381.45) 84.68
Profit/(Loss) after taxation (957.02) 138.55
Proposed Dividend - -
Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 26.00% 60.00%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements
of Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to
the Ind AS financial statements and summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
after referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statement in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information at the date of this Auditor’s
Report comprises the information included in the Director’s
Report including annexures, but does not include the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
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risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order” / “CARO 2016”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section
143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books
and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we
give in “Annexure-B”, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive income, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received
from the Directors as on 31 March 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors
is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A’. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

(9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements. (Refer Note 30 to the
Ind AS financial statements).

i. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts which has any material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any derivative
contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

P. Shankar Raman
Partner
Membership No. 204764

Chennai, April 17, 2020 UDIN : 20204764AAAAAV7088
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the
Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

P. Shankar Raman
Partner
Membership No. 204764

Chennai, April 17, 2020 UDIN : 20204764AAAAAV7088
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

In respect of its fixed assets (Property, Plant & Equipment
(PPE)) and Investment Properties:

a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of PPE and investment properties.

b) Most of the PPE and investment properties were
physically verified during the year by the Management

in accordance with a regular programme of
verification, which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of PPE and investment

properties at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) With respect to the leasehold land on which the
properties are constructed by the Company, based on
examination of the registered lease deeds provided
to us, we report that the lease agreements are in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date
where the company is the lessee in the agreement.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, having regard to the nature of
inventory, the physical verification by way of verification of
lease deeds, physical verification of materials, site visits
by the Management and certification of extent of work
completion by competent persons, are at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
20183.

The Company has not granted any loans, made
investments or provided guarantees and hence reporting
under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during
the year. There were no unclaimed deposits outstanding
at any time during the year.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified
by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the
cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended prescribed by the Central Government
under subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the

cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

(viiy According to the information and explanations given to

us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@) The Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ Stale Insurance, Income-tax, Cess,
Goods and Services Tax and other material statutory
dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Cess, Goods and Services Tax and other
material statutory dues in arrears as applicable as at
31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(c) The details of dues of Urban Land Tax and Income
Tax which have not been deposited as on 31 March
2020 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statute| Nature of Dues | Forum where Period to | Amount
dispute is pending| which the | unpaid
Amount | (Rs. In
relates Lakhs)
Jaipur Urban Jaipur 2006-16 | 32,179.39
Development assessment Development
Authority Act /Shahri Authority
1982 Jamabandi
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax Commissioner AY 25.71
1961 Demand of Income Tax 2011-12
(Appeals)

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and

(ix)

(xi)

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of dues to debenture holders and Banks.
The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from
financial institutions and government.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under
clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of such cases by the Management.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not paid / provided managerial
remuneration covered under the provisions of Section 197



read with Schedule V to the Act and accordingly reporting
under clause (xi) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(xiiy The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting
under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable to the
Company.

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

P. Shankar Raman
Partner
Membership No. 204764

Chennai, April 17, 2020 UDIN : 20204764AAAAAV7088
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2020

Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
Note No. 31t March, 2020 31 March, 2019

| ASSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT.........cciiiiiiiiiiieeieeee e 3 5,980.55 6,431.22
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 148.63 133.68
(¢) Investment Property ........ 4 8,406.07 8,610.10
(d)  INtANGIDIE ASSELS ...t 5 - -
(e) Financial Assets
(1) LOBNS . 6 116.06 112.92
(i) Other FINANCIAl ASSELS ......c..eiviiiiiiiiiieeiiceee e 7 - -
()  Other NON-CUITENt ASSELS .....ccuiiuiiiiiiiiiii et 8 560.05 1,262.06
SUB-TOTAL ... 15,211.36 16,549.98
2 CURRENT ASSETS
() INVENTOMIES. ..ttt ettt et nn e e e e 9 50,012.26 48,401.01
(b) Financial Assets
(i)  Trade ReCIVADIES ........ccoiiiiiiiei s 10 2,694.61 690.63
(i)  Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e 11 1,180.61 4,422.82
(i) Bank Balances other than (ii) above...........cccoccooiiiiiiiiiii, 11 1,858.68 2,503.63
(iv) Other Financial ASSEIS .........cceiiiiiiiiiiieii e 7 27.66 89.57
(C)  Other CUITENT ASSEES.....ccuiiiiiiieitieii ettt 8 444.88 369.52
SUB-TOTAL ...ttt 56,218.70 56,477.18
TOTAL ASSETS (1 + 2) 71,430.06 73,027.16
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
() Share Capital ......cceeieieieieere et enes 12 15,000.00 15,000.00
(L) I g 1T =L U PRSPPSO 13 15,425.21 15,399.52
SUB-TOTAL ...t 30,425.21 30,399.52
LIABILITIES
2  NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) BOITOWINGS. ...t 14 16,200.96 22,580.71
(i)  Other Financial Liabilities.............cooviiiiiiiieieeeee s 15 2.33 85.69
() PrOVISIONS. ...ttt ettt ettt ne e enes 16 3,049.34 3,865.84
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiecce e 17 1,302.25 1,345.88
(d) Other Non-current Liabilities .........cccuooiiiiiiiiiiecsiee e 18 798.45 707.00
SUB-TOTAL ... 21,353.33 28,585.12
3  CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
() BOITOWINGS. ...ttt ettt 14 2,044.68 18.52
(i) Trade Payables.........cccociiiiiiiii s 19
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises........ 46.05 13.82
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
SMAll ENTEIPIISES ...t 1,403.30 1,226.95
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities... 15 12,812.90 9,560.03
(b)  Provisions........c.cccoveevvenenniennenns 16 2,121.47 1,639.17
(c) Other Current Liabilities. ........cccuiiieiiiiiie e 18 1,223.12 1,584.03
SUB-TOTAL ...t 19,651.52 14,042.52
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1 + 2 +3)............ 71,430.06 73,027.16
Summary of Significant Accounting POlICIES...........cucciiiiiiiiii i 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Maheswar Sahu Sangeeta Prasad
Director Director
(DIN : 00034051) (DIN : 02791944)
Sanjay Srivastava
Chief Executive Officer
P. Shankar Raman Asfar Khan Bijal Parmar
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Chennai Place: Jaipur
Date: April 17, 2020 Date: April 17, 2020
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020

Vi

Vil
Vil

Xl

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Particulars

Revenue from OPErationsS ...........cooouiiiiiiiiieiie e
Oher INCOME ...

Total Income (I 4+ ) .o

EXPENSES
(@) Cost of Sales
S O 0 ) Ao ) o o] 1Yo £
- Operation & Maintenance eXPeNSES.........ccocveriieeiiieeenieeniee e
b) Employee benefits EXPENSE......c.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
C) FINANCE COSES ...

o

) Depreciation and amortisation expense
€) OFhEr EXPENSES ....vviiiiciiiie et et e et e e e nnes

(
(
(
(

Total Expenses- (IV)
Profit before tax (Il - IV) ...
Tax Expense

(1) CUITENT 18Xttt
(2) Deferred tax.....cccie e
Less: MAT Credit entitlement
Total tax exXpense- (VI).........cooiiiiiii e
Profit after tax (V = VI) ...
Other comprehensive iNCOMEe .............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiin e
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(@) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans ...........c.cccceevee
(b) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to
o]0 {18 gl 011 USSR
Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII) ...

Earnings per share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
(1) Basic/ Diluted Earnings per share (RS.)......ccccereriiniiiiienieneeneeene

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements

Note No.

27
27

28

Rs. in Lakhs

For the For the
Year ended Year ended
31t March, 2020 31t March, 2019
10,652.92 13,352.45
305.32 165.37
10,958.24 13,517.82
1,525.72 2,242.42
1,680.01 1,720.16
514.66 435.25
2,583.76 2,487.65
654.70 699.34
714.26 676.48
7,673.11 8,261.30
3,285.13 5,256.52
581.31 1,143.21
(40.93) 180.62
- (536.17)
540.38 787.66
2,744.75 4,468.86
(6.57) 6.89
(9.27) 9.72
2.70 (2.83)
2,738.18 4,475.75
1.83 2.98

In terms of our report attached

For B.K. Khare & Co.

Chartered Accountants

P. Shankar Raman
Partner

Place: Chennai
Date: April 17, 2020

Director

Maheswar Sahu

(DIN : 00034051)

Sanjay Srivastava

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sangeeta Prasad
Director
(DIN : 02791944)

Chief Executive Officer

Asfar Khan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Jaipur
Date: April 17, 2020

Bijal Parmar
Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31t March, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the Year ... 3,285.13 5,256.52

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Finance costs recognised in profit Or l0SS.........cccuiiiiiiiiie i 2,583.76 2,487.65
INEEIEST INCOME ... e e e st e e e nneees (228.05) (99.81)
Investment income recognised in profit Or 10SS........cccoviiieiiiiiiiceneeeeee - (63.84)
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets...........cccoveeniiiiicneeneeee 654.70 699.34
Operating Profit before working capital changes...................ccccoooiniiiiiinne. 6,295.54 8,279.86

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables ............cccccoiviiiinicnnn (2,003.98) 799.82
Decrease/ (INCrease) iN iNVENTOMES .......c.uoiviiiiiiiiiieiee e 255.31 (91.98)
(Increase) / Decrease in other Non Current and current assets ..........c.cccceeeene (42.37) 135.33
Increase Financial Assets- Loans...........cccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s (3.14) (1.61)
Increase in trade and other payables ..........ccccooiiiiiii e 208.58 5.36
(Decrease)/ Increase in financial liabilities ..............ccooiiiiiii i (310.94) 52.83
(Decrease)/ Increase in other liabilities ... (269.46) 161.40
Increase/ (Decrease) iN ProVISIONS..........ccoiiiiieiiriienie et 184.28 (102.52)
Cash generated from operations..................ccoooiiiiiinii 4,313.82 9,238.49
Income taxes (refund)/pPaid, NET ..o 129.37 (1,222.45)
Net cash generated by operating activities ................ccccciini 4,443.19 8,016.04

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital EXPENAITUIE .....oiiiiiiie et a e erre e e e ssaeeeenes (103.47) (181.25)
Payments to acquire financial assets .........cocccviiiiiiiiiii e 644.95 (21,061.10)
Proceeds from sale of financial @SSEtS ...........uuuureeeeiiiiiiiiiieeieeee e - 19,290.48
Interest & Investment INCOME rECEIVEd..........oeeeiieiiiiriieeece e 245.60 23.68
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities ................cccccoeeeenienn. 787.08 (1,928.19)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from DOIMTOWINGS .....cocuiiiiiiiiieeiee e 2,026.16 29,168.95
Repayment of DOrrOWINGS.......oooiiiii e (5,500.00) (27,800.00)
Dividend Paid (including dividend distribution tax) ..........cccoeeveiieiniiiniiiiiecniees (2,712.49) (2,712.49)
INEEIEST PAIA ... e (2,286.15) (765.29)
Net cash used in financing activities..................cccccociiiii (8,472.48) (2,108.83)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31t March, 2020 31t March, 2019
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents ..................ccccocevirnnnne (3,242.21) 3,979.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,422.82 443.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year.................c.oco s 1,180.61 4,422.82
Components of cash and cash equivalents
CaSh ON NN ......oiiiie ettt e e aeeereeens 0.65 0.65
With banks
= ON CUIMTENT @CCOUNT. ...ttt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e e e e e e e annnreeeas 634.38 44217
- on cheques on hand 473.85 -
- ON AEPOSIt ACCOUNT ... tiiiiiiiiiee ettt sanees 71.73 3,980.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) ... 1,180.61 4,422.82
T in Lakhs
Change in Liability arising from financing activities A B
Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Non Current Borrowings (Refer Note 14 A) ..o 16,200.96 22,580.71
Current Borrowings (Refer Note 14 B) .....oouiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 2,044.68 18.52
Current maturities of Long term debt (Refer Note 15)........cccccvviiiiiiiiiiiieeee 7,108.38 5,496.36
TORAL ... e 25,354.02 28,095.59
Cash FIOWS (A = B) ..o e (2,741.57)
EIR adjustment to the above (732.27)
Cash flows, net as per Financing Activities for the year ended 31 March, 2020.... (3,473.84)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Note 2).
The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set in ‘Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -

Statement of Cash Flows’.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B.K. Khare & Co.

Chartered Accountants Maheswar Sahu Sangeeta Prasad
Director Director
(DIN : 00034051) (DIN : 02791944)

Sanjay Srivastava
Chief Executive Officer

P. Shankar Raman Asfar Khan Bijal Parmar
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Chennai Place: Jaipur

Date: April 17, 2020 Date: April 17, 2020



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020

Rs. in Lakhs
Share Capital Reserves and Surplus
Debenture Capital
Equity Share Redemption Redemption Retained
Particulars Capital Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
Balance as at - April 1, 2018............cccccoviiiiiiiiice 15,000.00 1,875.00 5,000.00 6,761.26 28,636.26
Profit for the year.........cocciiiiii e 4,468.86 4,468.86
Other Comprehensive Income net of taxes*..............cccceeeee. 6.89 6.89
Dividend paid on Equity Shares (2,250.00) (2,250.00)
Dividend Distribution TaX.........c.coovviiiiineneneneseseeeseesee e (462.49) (462.49)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve..........c.ccccvveieene 2,036.66 (2,036.66) -
Transfer to Retained Earnings (500.00) 500.00 -
Balance as at - March 31, 2019..............cccoooviiiiieeiee s 15,000.00 3,411.66 5,000.00 6,987.86 30,399.52
Particulars Share Capital Reserves and Surplus
Debenture Capital
Equity Share Redemption Redemption Retained
Capital Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
Balance as at - April 1, 2019..........cccoeiiiiiiiiice 15,000.00 3,411.66 5,000.00 6,987.86 30,399.52
Profit for the year.........c.coiiii e 2,744.75 2,744.75
Other Comprehensive Income net of taxes*...........ccoceveveiens (6.57) (6.57)
Dividend paid on Equity Shares............cccccooniiiicicicicicieee (2,250.00) (2,250.00)
Dividend Distribution TaX..........cuvvriririninenineneneseseseseeeas (462.49) (462.49)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve............c.ccccccceee. (968.97) 968.97 -
Balance as at - 31 March, 2020.... 15,000.00 2,442.69 5,000.00 7,982.52 30,425.21
* Remeasurement gains/ (losses) net of taxes on defined benefit plans during the year is recognised as part of retained earnings.
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Maheswar Sahu Sangeeta Prasad
Director Director
(DIN : 00034051) (DIN : 02791944)
Sanjay Srivastava
Chief Executive Officer
P. Shankar Raman Asfar Khan _ Bijal Parmar
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Chennai Place: Jaipur

Date: April 17, 2020
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MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020

1. General Information

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited (“the Company”) is engaged in the
business of development of an Industrial park with Special Economic Zone
(SEZ) and Domestic Tariff Area (DTA). The Company acquires land under
lease, incurs expenditure on its development and related infrastructure
facilities and gives them on a long-term lease for industrial, commercial
and residential use. The Company also maintains the Industrial Park for
which it collects operation and maintenance charges from the lessees.

The registered office of the Company is located at 4th Floor, 411, Neelkanth
Tower, Bhawani Singh Road, C-Scheme, Jaipur — 302001, Rajasthan.

2.1

2.2

23

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The aforesaid financial statements have been approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue in the
meeting held on 17th April, 2020.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Measurement of Fair Values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company considers the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

2.31 Land Lease Premium

Land lease premium is recognized as income upon creation
of leasehold rights in favour of the lessee or upon an
agreement to create leasehold rights with handing over of
possession.

2.4

2.5

2.3.2 Income from properties

Income from properties and other assets given under operating
lease is recognised based on the terms of lease agreement on
a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable lease period.

2.3.3 Income from Operations and Maintenance (O&M)
Income from operation & maintenance charges and water
charges are recognized over time on an accrual basis as
per terms of the agreement with the lessees.

2.3.4 Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportionate
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’'s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Current versus non-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of activity carried out by the Company and the
period between the procurement and realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of Current — Non Current classification of
assets & liabilities.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed
in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities.

Borrowings are classified as current if they are due to be settled
within 12 months after the reporting period.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as
per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option

11
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CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020
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2.6

to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease
if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing
rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases
with similar characteristics.

2.5.1 The Company as a Lessee

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements
of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.5.2 Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
The Company recognises lease payments received under
operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the
lease term.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

2.6.1 Current tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable
in respect of taxable income for the year. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rate that has been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.6.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
way the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

2.6.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,

27

2.8

2.9

2.10

the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of construction material is determined on the basis of weighted
average method. Construction Work-in-Progress includes cost of
land, construction costs and allocated interest & manpower costs
and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties used in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets as
indicated below:

Certain plant and equipment are depreciated over a period of
12 years based on technical evaluation of useful life by management.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by
the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction for
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2.14

such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
Investment properties are measured in accordance with requirement
of IND AS 16 for cost model.

Investment property includes leasehold land and building.
Depreciation on investment property has been provided on pro-
rata basis, on the straight-line method as per the useful life of such
property. Buildings are depreciated over the period of 60 years
considering this period as the useful life for the Company.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated at the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also, allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit /
(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on the available information.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2.14.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows

2.15

2.16

estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material). When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.14.2 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract
is considered to exist where the Company has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract.

2.14.3 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

a. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and

b.  a present obligation arising from past events, when no
reliable estimate is possible.

2.14.4 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Fina